ST.GEORGE SELECTBOARD & ASSESSOR'S MEETING MINUTES
Monday, January 7, 2008

The meeting was called to order at 6:00PM with the Town Manager and Board members
Driscoll, Cote, Carey, Miller and Lunt present. Also present were Bob Dennison, Carl Patch, Dave
Schmanska, Paul & Francine Laporte, Bob Cremonni, Bob & Anita Siegenthaler, Jack Bates, Beverly
Emerson, Diane Hall, Carl Danielson, Debbie Wheelock, Chuck Paine, Paul Cote, Jan Wirth, Erin
Rhoda, and Budget Committee members Ann Matlack and Kyle Peterson.

OPEN DISCUSSION

- Bob Cremonni updated the Board on his communications with Sen. Savage and Rep.
Rector regarding the paving of Route 131 from Tenants Harbor to Port Clyde.

- Anita Siegenthaler questioned the accuracy of the Organizational Chart on the website in
regards to the 2008 budget proposal, suggesting one of her own. The Chairman said
this would be discussed later under the 2008 budget.

- Selectperson Cote noted that the fuel assistance funds at the Martinsville Grange had
increased due to additional donations and bottle returns at the transfer station.

REGULAR SESSION
- Adjustments to Agenda... Legal Review of Manager’s Contract added under Executive Session
- Minutes... On a motion by Carey (Miller), it was voted 5-0 to approve the minutes of
December 27, 2007 as written.
- Communications... letter received from Paul Ackerman regarding abatement request
... MSAD #50 meeting agendas were received
... thank you letter received from ADAPT
- Warrant... 2 warrants were reviewed and signed, plus abatement forms that were
approved at the December 27" meeting.

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT
- Town Report... The Manager reported that the process has begun; the request for
individual reports has gone out; a quote from Lakeside Printing has been requested; and
that there is a need for a dedication by the Selectboard. Selectperson Lunt spoke about
the Town Administration article in the town report and questioned the process of
approving the funding of the Manager’s salary when the contract is approved by the
Select Board. Lunt referred to action at the 2002 town meeting and a legal opinion from
the town attorney regarding funding contractual obligations. Selectperson Lunt asked for
a separate article to address the Town Manager’s salary: “To see what sum of money, if
any, the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the Town Manager’s salary”. A
lengthy discussion followed concerning the process of approving contracts and the
funding of them.
- Thermal Imaging Camera Demonstration... The Manager reported that the Fire Chief
would give a demonstration at the meeting on January 14".
- Committees...
- Planning Board...meets 1/8, public hearing on ordinances
- Recreation Committee...meets 1/13
- Harbor Committee... meets 1/10
- Clam Committees...meets 1/10
- Communication Committee...meets 1/9

OLD BUSINESS
- Hupper Land Use Violation / Status... A reminder was sent to the State, but nothing has
been received.
- Communications Committee/ Charge & Appointments... tabled.



- Management Audit / Time Management Report from Lunt... The discussion on this item

was included in the 2008 Budget item.
NEW BUSINESS

- Presentation on St George River Access... (taken out of order) The Coastal Waters
Management Board Chairman, Carl Patch, gave a powerpoint presentation on the St
George River Access project and the Board’s work on it during 2007. A question and
answer period followed with subjects including: what relief the project would have on the
other launch sites, strings attached to grant monies, site sizes and the projects effect on
the future of the town. On a motion by Cote (Carey), it was voted 5-0 to authorize the
Coastal Waters Management Board to proceed with non-binding discussions with
property owners and report back to the Select Board.

- 2008 Budget — Selectboard to Budget Committee ... Papers summarizing the Select
Board’s changes to the Town Manager’s Budget were presented to the Budget
Committee. A summary of the revaluation project and the Rackliff Island causeway
project was also given. In reviewing the Manager’s proposal for a Public Works Director’s
position, discussion turned to the agenda item on Management Audit/Time Management.
Selectperson Lunt reported that he had spoken with three people and Maine Municipal
Association (MMA) about performing a review of the Manager and Assistant Manager’s
workload and time management. Lunt said that a local group wouldn’t cost anything and
that MMA charged $90/hour. Diane Hall said she thought the review was going to be of
the whole town office staff. Chairperson Driscoll said he felt a rigorous approach and
thorough review should be done of town government. Bob Siegenthaler asked if the
Select Board would be included in this review, and Driscoll said he felt it should. Budget
Committee Chairperson Ann Matlack said she felt a review was important, and that it
could take time, but there were a lot of issues and projects facing the Town. Matlack
suggested taking six months to review everything, coming back to a special town
meeting at the end of the summer to address any issues that come out of the review.
The Manager said that he could live with that schedule because by the end of the
summer there would probably be more information about the status of the ambulance
service that could also be addressed at the time. The Manager did ask, however, that if
additional help was not addressed at the 2008 town meeting, could the Board postpone
the Revaluation project from 2008-2009 to 2009-2010. By general agreement, the
Board authorized Selectpersons Driscoll and Lunt to meet and develop a plan.

- Revaluation Project / Action Plan... The Board tabled action on this until the next
meeting.

- Charter Revisions / Action Plan... Tabled.

- Tax Anticipation Note for 2008... The Manager asked for authority to request bids for $2
million, with a deadline for bids of January 28" and a receipt of funds by February 15"
On a motion by Cote (Lunt), it was voted 5-0 to approve the request.

EXECUTIVE SESSION (if necessary)
- Legal Review of Manager’s Contract (added)... On a motion by Miller (Carey), it was voted
5-0 at 8:37pm to go into executive session to receive a legal review of the Manager’s
contract. The Board came out of executive session at 8:53pm.

Reminders:
- Next Selectboard Meeting, Monday, January 14, 2008, 6:00pm, Town Office

The meeting adjourned at 8:54pm.

Respectfully submitted,

John M. Falla, Board Secretary

Page - 2



ST.GEORGE SELECTBOARD & ASSESSOR'S MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, January 15, 2008

The meeting was originally scheduled for Monday, January 14", but was postponed to this
evening due to weather conditions. The meeting was called to order at 6:00PM with the Town
Manager and Board members Driscoll, Cote, Carey, Miller and Lunt present. Also present were
Erin Rhoda, Anita & Bob Siegenthaler, Ann Matlack, Dick Nixon, Nancy Lunt, Stan Levy, Jack Bates,
Jay Balano, Diane Hall and Tim Polky.

OPEN DISCUSSION

- Bob Siegenthaler asked about the Executive Session item about the legal review of the
Manager’s contract, specifically if the review was for the benefit of the Select Board. The
response was in the affirmative.

- A lengthy discussion, approximately an hour in length, took place concerning the
Manager’s contract and the process in developing and approving it. Several spoke in
favor of public involvement in the process, while some others said that the Select Board
was elected to represent the townspeople and that it was their responsibility.
Chairperson Driscoll referenced the Town Charter that directs the Select Board to set the
Manager’s compensation with a contract that does not exceed three years. Selectperson
Lunt said he doesn’t feel the Board needs to sign the contract before town meeting. Dick
Nixon said he feels the Town Charter needs to be changed to allow public vote on the
contract and asked direction on how to accomplish the same. Driscoll said he would be
willing to meet with him concerning the process.

REGULAR SESSION
- Adjustments to Agenda... Disposition of Engine 3 added under New Business
- Minutes... On a motion by Cote (Carey), it was voted 5-0 to approve the minutes of
January 7, 2008 as amended. The amendment was the inclusion of the sentence
“Selectperson Lunt asked for a separate article to address the Town Manager’s salary:
‘To see what sum of money, if any, the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the
Town Manager’s salary’.
- Communications... CEO/LPI Reports for Dec 2007 and 2007 Total were received
... Submerged Lands Application for PC Fishermen’s Coop was received
... 2007 Solid Waste Reports were received
... November 2007 Assessing Sales Report was received
- Warrant... was reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT

- Board Secretary Position... The Manager noted that after the January 7" meeting
adjourned, Board members asked him to provide a budget figure that would fund a
Board Secretary for the Select Board. The Manager reported that in 2007 there were 40
Board meetings, that it would average approximately 4 hours to attend and prepare the
minutes, and that it would probably cost $25 per hour. Based upon this scenario, a
budget of $4000 would be needed. The Manager also reported that the offer of this
additional work within the town office was individually declined by the staff. There was
discussion about finding a volunteer to perform the work, preparing a job description for
the position, and that Board members will seek individuals to fill the position. On a
motion by Carey (Lunt), it was voted 5-0 to add $4000 to the 2008 budget for a Board
Secretary for the Select Board.

- Nomination Papers (added by Manager)... The Manager reported that Terry Driscoll and Fred
Carey had taken out papers for the Select Board positions. He also reported that
Spencer Hurtt had taken out papers for MSAD #50 School Board.

- Committees...

- Planning Board...meets 1/22. Chairperson Driscoll summarized the 1/8 public
hearing on ordinance changes regarding towers, windmills, etc.

- Board of Appeals...hearing scheduled for 1/24, notice was received by Board

- Recreation Committee...met 1/13. Selectperson Lunt reported that there was
interest in major expenditures in town.



- Solid Waste & Recycling Committee...meets 1/16

- Harbor Committee...met 1/10. Selectperson Carey reported that the topics of
discussion included ordinance changes, the St George River Access project,
and the idea of changing mooring fees.

- Budget Committee... is tentatively scheduled to meet next week

- Conservation Commission... Wetlands program on 1/17

- Shellfish Joint Board...Selectperson Miller reported on the Joint Board meeting of
1/10, saying that the harvest the last two years has been poor.

OLD BUSINESS

Hupper Land Use Violation / Status... nothing received yet

Communications Committee/ Charge & Appointments... A draft charge was distributed for
review. Selectperson Cote said that six people attended, with another 3-4 interested but
not able to attend. Cote said the group wanted to be an unofficial committee and that
the draft newsletter would first come to the Manager for review, then on to the Select
Board for final approval. The Manager reviewed some administrative procedures
pertinent to the process of developing the newsletter. The Manager also asked about the
website and town report and was told that the committee was only working on the
newsletter at this time.

Government Evaluation Committee (taken out of order)... A draft committee charge was
distributed and Chairperson Driscoll summarized the meeting and discussions held with
he, Selectperson Lunt and Wickham Skinner, who is interested in this project. Lunt
asked about the hiring of an outside firm, and the general feeling was that decision
would be up to the committee. There was a discussion of providing funds for this
committee to complete the task. Ann Matlack mentioned the group Maine Solutions as a
possible resource to assist in this project. On a motion by Carey (Cote), it was voted 5-0
to approve the draft charge in concept, recognizing that a final charge would be
forthcoming.

Revaluation Project / Action Plan... On a motion by Carey (Cote), it was voted 5-0 to
defer the revaluation project from 2008-2009 to 2009-2010, contact the seven
companies that responded to the Request for Proposal, notifying them of the schedule
change and if it affects their proposal, and amend the 2008 budget by reducing the
Revaluation Reserve line item from $100,000 to $75,000.

Charter Revisions / Action Plan... On a motion by Carey (Miller), it was voted 5-0 to
indefinitely table this item.

NEW BUSINESS

Thermal Imaging Camera Demonstration... Fire Chief Tim Polky provided a demonstration
of the recently purchased thermal imaging camera. Polky said that the camera replaced
another one that is about eight years old and no longer serviceable. He said that the
camera replaced had cost about $14,000 and that this new one cost $11,500.

Disposition of Engine 3 (added)... Polky reported that the old Engine 3 fire truck was
replaced last year and that it was no longer needed. On a motion by Carey (Miller), it
was voted 5-0 to put the truck out to bid.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

On a motion by Lunt (Miller), it was voted 5-0 at 8:18pm to go into executive session to
discuss the legal review of the Town Manager’s proposed contract. At 8:43pm the Town Manager
was excused from the meeting. The Board came out of executive session at 8:56pm.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:57pm.

Respectfully submitted,

John M. Falla, Board Secretary

Page - 2



ST.GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSOR'S MEETING MINUTES
Monday, January 28, 2008

The meeting was called to order at 6:00PM with the Town Manager and Board members
Driscoll, Cote, Miller and Lunt present. Select Person Carey was absent due to his work with the
Special Olympics. Also present were Bob Dennison, Diane Hall, Erin Rhoda, Larry Bailey, Carl
Danielson, John Bates, Diane Speranza, Anita & Bob Siegenthaler, and Budget Committee members
Ann Matlack and Mike Hyvarinen.

OPEN DISCUSSION

- Select Person Don Lunt introduced Diane Speranza and recommended her for Board
Secretary. Lunt said there was no commitment on either side, that both she and the
Board could change their minds if things didn’t work out. A poll of the Board showed
everyone in favor, with her starting next week.

- Anita Siegenthaler spoke, and provided written comments, regarding 1) the January 7"
minutes, which she said should be corrected to show she did not suggest her
organizational chart replace the Town’s, 2) the Town Manager’s current contract, 3) her
review of the MMA 2007 Salary Survey for towns within our population range, 4) a
summary of management in our population range, and 5) and her recommendations
concerning the Government Evaluation Committee, the Town Manager’s salary and
contract, and the future of the Town.

REGULAR SESSION
- Adjustments to Agenda... none
- Minutes... On a motion by Cote (Lunt), it was voted 4-0 to approve the minutes of
January 15, 2008 as written.

- Communications... Submerged lands notice received for Simmons wharf in Port Clyde
... Planning Board public hearing notices were received
... Financial reports were received

- Warrant... two weeks of warrants were reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT
- Tax Anticipation Note Update... The Manager reported that the deadline for bids was
changed from 1/28 to 2/4, but the deadline for receipt of funds is still 2/15.
- Nomination Papers Update... It was reported that nomination papers for the 2 Select
Board positions were filed by Terry Driscoll and Fred Carey. Papers were also received
for the one MSAD #50 position from George Emery & Spencer Hurtt.
- Committees...
- Board of Appeals...met last week & denied appeal
- Budget Committee...met last week, has recommendations tonight
- Communication Committee...meets 1/30 at 7pm

OLD BUSINESS

- Hupper Land Use Violation / Status... It was reported that the previous email from Colin
Clark/DEP referred to what he was authorized to agree to. Apparently the terms are
being negotiated by DEP and Hupper’'s attorney.

- Government Evaluation Committee... Chairperson Driscoll said that Wick Skinner has met
individually with Board members and plans to meet with the Manager and his Assistant
tomorrow. Skinner is being considered for Chairman of this committee. Bob Dennison
asked about the make-up of the committee, and Driscoll said that it has not yet been
finalized; only a draft charge has been accepted.



NEW BUSINESS

- 2008 Budget — Budget Committee Recommendations... The Budget Committee provided
their recommendations, saying they were in favor of all the budget items except one.
They said they felt Fireworks should be included at $10,000.

- 2008 Town Meeting Warrant Draft... A review of the draft warrant occurred article by
article. It was noted that the Manager’s salary under his proposed contract was listed.
The line items concerning a Director of Public Works were removed. The Manager said
he will present LD1 calculations at the next meeting, recommending that the voters
approve a one-time exceed the limit this year rather than raising the ceiling limit.

- Creation of Scholarship Award Committees... The Manager summarized the scholarships
that will need an Awards Committee this year, and the requirements for that committee
as set by the Wilson Scholarship. Further discussion was tabled until the next meeting.

- February Meeting Schedule... It was noted that the meetings for February will be on the
4™ 11" and the 25". The 18" is a holiday and the town office will not be open.
Chairperson Driscoll said that he would like to present on the 11" a review of the
process involved in negotiating the Manager’s contract. Driscoll said that he felt the
Board had an obligation to the Town to have them know the process, emphasizing
however, that the Board deals with the employment aspects (performance evaluation and
setting the salary) of the Manager.

Reminders:
- Streetlight Public Meeting, Thursday, January 31, 2008, 7:00pm, Town Office
- Next Selectboard Meeting, Monday, February 4, 2008, 6:00pm, Town Office

The meeting adjourned at 7:27pm.

Respectfully submitted,

John M. Falla, Board Secretary

Page - 2



ST.GEORGE SELECT BOARD MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, January 31, 2008

The meeting was called to order at 7:00PM with the Town Manager and Board members
Driscoll, Carey, Miller and Lunt present. Also present were approximately 20 members of the

public.

REGULAR SESSION — Street light Review

Chairperson Driscoll opened the meeting and noted that he had received a call from
Jonathan Coggeshall who had requested that the light by he and Peg Fields be removed.
The Manager read three (3) letters that had been received from Johanna Tutone, Nancy
Lunt and Winston Broadbent.

Bob Dennison asked about the light at the Smalleytown intersection. Manager John Falla
responded that DOT Traffic Engineer Dave Allen will be reviewing that intersection and
providing information on safety features. Dennison also said that he felt the light by the
Odd Fellows hall on Elementary School Road should remain. Also, the light across from
his home on River Road.

Don Jacobson asked about when the survey was conducted, that he understood that it
had been done during daylight hours. Selectperson Carey responded that it started at
night, but that several factors (inability to read pole numbers, etc) changed the schedule
to the daylight hours. Jacobson said that the light by the library was out, and that it
should be corrected as people pass that way at night. He also said that the light by his
house is a “buddy” of his as it has been there with him for almost 70 years. He said he
felt it will probably be relocated to the new intersection, but he will miss it. He also
explained the problems that have occurred with the discontinuance of the entrance to
Wallston Road in front of his house. Jacobson finished by saying that the lights by the
schoolhouse should not be eliminated, and that he loves streetlights.

John Lantz said that we need streetlights.

Stan Levy said he was in favor of removing the light in front of his house on pole #27 on
Wallston Road. He said there is no intersection there.

John Crane asked about the process of adding and removing lights, saying that it use to
be done at town meetings. Crane also said that the population in Port Clyde has doubled
or tripled and that more streetlights are needed.

Joan Hastings said she wants to keep the light near her home on Watts Avenue (#91),
and others on Watts Avenue as there are bikes and kids there, and that a lot of foot
traffic goes by.

Jack Bates said he seconded Joan Hastings comments, noting that the light by Hastings
has a turn and a short hill. He also wants the others on Watts Avenue due to the
amount of activity there. Bates also said the light at the end of Watts Avenue is not a
town streetlight, but rather one he placed there and pays for.

Trish Barnes asked if she could speak about other night lights the town has, specifically
the ones at the fire station in Tenants Harbor. She wondered if the lights could be
motion sensitive in order to save energy and lower light pollution.

John Crane said that the streetlights on Watts Avenue help anyone who drives there.
Charmarie Blaisdell said she had not heard that an advantage of removing the lights
would be energy savings. She did say the Board needs to balance energy against safety.
Bonnie Percival said the town can’t be responsible for everyone’s actions, that people
need to be responsible for themselves, such as carrying a flashlight if they are out at
night or joggers wearing reflective clothing. When she asked about liability of not
having streetlights, the Manager said he would contact the town’s insurance carrier.



- John Crane said that a sign should be put up by the Smalleytown intersection letting
people know that the road has been changed.

- Dave Percival asked about lights at the school. It was noted that the town has no
control over those lights and that the school needed to be contacted.

- Stan Levy spoke about signs versus streetlights, saying he agreed that if a person is out
at night they should carry a flashlight.

- John Crane said that the streetlights are stretched out and that more lights may be
needed.

- Joan Hastings said that Watts Avenue is a thoroughfare, especially during the summer
months.

- Bob Ensor of Marshall Point Road said that during the summer months there is a steady
stream of people along Marshall Point Road and the rest of Port Clyde.

- Barbara Broadbent spoke about the light in front of her father-in-law’s place on Factory
Road, where they live, and the non-stop flow of people going by. She said that there are
several heavy-footed drivers, too, and that the streetlight helps cars see the stop sign.

- CIiff and Nancy Sherman spoke about the light in front of their place on Drift Inn Road,
noting problems that occur due to foot and car traffic from the Harpoon Restaurant. He
also suggested a light at the Drift Inn Beach parking lot.

- John Lantz said he would like the town to keep the light at pole #2/503 on Glenmere
Road.

- John Crane said the Board should look at setting limits for lights in the villages and also
outside of villages, saying that there should probably be more lights in the villages.

- Stan Levy said that streetlights are a waste of power.

The public was thanked for their input, and was told that the town would check into the
authority of changing streetlights.
The meeting was adjourned at 8:03pm.

Respectfully submitted,

John M Falla
Town Manager

Page - 2



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, February 4, 2008

The meeting was called to order a 6 p.m. with the Town Manager and Board members
Driscoll, Cote, Miller, Carey and Lunt present. Among those also present were Bob Dennison,
Sandra Dickson Coggeshall, Beverly Emerson, Diane Hall, Ann Matlack, Craig Wilgus, Steve
Miller, Anitaand Bob Siegenthaler, Jack Bates, Larry Bailey, and a representative of Camden
National Bank.

OPEN BIDS FOR TAX ANTICIPATION NOTES:

Town Manager reported that four (4) bids were received, which were opened. The bids
were asfollows. TD Bank North —2.57%; Damariscotta Bank & Trust — 3.69%; Bar Harbor
Bank & Trust — 2.68%; Camden National Bank — 2. 47%. The Manager said a figure of 3% had
been budgeted.

OPEN DISCUSSION:

Sandra Dickson Coggeshall presented a survey regarding senior citizens services which
the St. George Community Association would like inserted in the May/June town newsletter.
She said her committee would pay for printing costs and excess postage.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .Town Report Update (added to Town Manager’ s Report)
Newsdletter Review (added to New Business)
Policy for Employees on Committees (added to New Business)
- Minutes. .......... On amotion by Selectperson Cote (Miller), it was voted 4-0 to
approve the minutes of January 28, 2008, as written, with
Selectperson Carey abstaining because he was not present at
that meeting.
- Communications.. . . . .. Meeting agenda for SAD 50 received
L etter from Code Enforcement Officer concerning Drift Inn
Beach property violation received
L etter from Jack Bates concerning removal of street lights
received
-Warrant . .......... Reviewed and signed

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:

- LD 1 Effect on 2008 Budget. The Manager explained that LD 1 is a legislative document
that places a ceiling on the amount of money that can be spent on municipal levels, that is, how
much expenditures can increase. He reviewed the calculations for 2008 and recommended that
the limit be exceeded for one year. Selectperson Cote asked if the limit could be changed year by
year, and the Manager said it could.

- The Manager distributed a proposed dedication and letter regarding the St. George Trust
Funds. On a motion by Selectperson Cote (Carey), it was voted 5-0 to approve same.

- The Manager said the Town Report will go to the printer thisweek and will be back by
February 29.



- Committees: - Organization Planning Committee meets Thursday, 2/7. Chairperson
Driscoll said the Board has nothing to respond to and would like to slow the process down. He
said the State needs to give directions and has not. Anita Siegenthaler and Ann Matlack
commented on the fact that no one has seen an agenda for the meeting. Driscoll said he plansto
attend.

- Recreation Committee meets Sunday, 2/10, a 6 p.m.

- Harbor Committee meets Thursday, 2/7, a 6 p.m.

- Shellfish Joint Board meets in Warren Thursday, 2/7 at 6 p.m.
- Conservation Committee meets on Thursday, 2/7 at 7:30 am.
- Board of Appeals meets Wednesday, 2/6 at 7 p.m.

OLD BUSINESS:

- Hupper Land Use Violation/Status: Nothing new to report.

- Government Evaluation Committee: It was reported that Chairperson Driscoll and
Selectperson Lunt have submitted names to Wickham Skinner for hisreview, that Skinner is
hoping to have 5 to 7 members on the committee, is having a meeting shortly and will report
back. The Manager submitted changes to the draft charge. On amotion by Selectperson Lunt
(Cote) it was voted 5-0 to approve the changes. The charge was then signed by the Board
members. Funding for the committee in the amount of $10,000.00 was recommended to be
added to the town budget, and the Manager said an adjustment to the town meeting warrant was
made to include that figure. The Board was in general agreement on the funding.

- 2008 Town Meeting Warrant : Changes were discussed last week. The Manager reported
the only addition was in Article 11 - the $10,000.00 funding for the Government Evaluation
Committee. The Warrant was signed by the Board. The Manager distributed a schedule
showing comparable salaries for towns in Knox County. Anita Siegenthaler asked that schedule
be put on the town’s website prior to the next meeting.

- Crestion of Scholarship Award Committees: To comply with the requirement of the Wilson
Scholarship Fund, the Manager suggested contacting the high school for an adminis- trator and
an educator and local churches for amember of the clergy to serve on the scholarship
committee.

NEW BUSINESS:
- Tax Anticipation Notes/Action: On a motion by Selectperson Cote (Miller) it was voted by
the Board of Selectmen for the Town of St. George, Maine as follows.

(1) That under and pursuant to Title 30-A, Section 5771 of the Maine Revised Statutes, as
amended and supplemented, there be and hereby is authorized the issuance of $2,000,000
principal amount of Tax Anticipation Note of the Town in anticipation of the receipt of taxes for
the municipal fiscal year which commenced January |, 2008 and ends December 31, 2008.

(2) Said Note shall be dated February 15, 2008, shall mature on September 30, 2008, shall
be signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by the Chairman of the Board of Selectmen, shall
bear interest a the rate of 2.47% per annum, shall be payable at Camden National Bank in
Thomaston, Maine, and otherwise be in such form and bear such details as the signers may
determine.

(3) That said Note is hereby sold and awarded to Camden National Bank.




(4) Said Note is hereby-designated qualified tax-exempt obligations of the Town for the
2008 calendar year pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

(5 That all things heretofore done and all action heretofore taken by the Town, its
municipal officers and agents in the authorization of said Note are hereby ratified, approved and
confirmed and the Treasurer and Chairman are each hereby authorized to take any and all action
necessary or convenient to carry out the provisions of this voting, including delivering said Note
against payment therefor.

- Streetlight Meeting Review: The Manager read a letter from Jack Bates regarding the
streetlight review. Selectperson Carey said he and Driscoll reviewed various areas last Saturday.
They would like a chance to review their notes and Jack Bates's letter and asked that discussion
be put off for aweek The Board was asked to look into the possibility of a property owner
maintaining a streetlight that is scheduled for removal at his or her own expense. The matter was
tabled until the next meeting.

- Review of 2007 Financial Statements. The Manager distributed the following: Comparison
of Collection of Real Estate Taxes in 2003 and 2007; Semiannual Report on Wilson Scholarship
Fund; Reserve Accounts;Trust Funds (Anita Siegenthaler asked who determined what
distributions were made for the poor. She wastold the Board does.); Preliminary Draft for
Department Report.

- 2008 Action Plan/Bid Process/Appointments: The Manager suggested that the Action Plan
should be reviewed by Board before a new Board comes in. The Manager went over list of
Board members committees. The Manager distributed the 2008 Budget for Issues and Projects
and alist of Town Contract Work/Contractors. He asked if the Board wanted to authorize him to
negotiate with contractors or to advertise for bids. It was generally agreed that there should be
bids, and on a motion by Selectperson Miller (Cote) it was voted 5-0 to advertise for bids. Anne
Matlack asked if all current contracts shouldn’t be extended for one year until the Government
Evaluation Committee makes a decision on a public works director. Chairperson Driscoll said
that even if a public works director is put in place it would be at least a year before he would deal
with contracts.

- Policy on Employees on Committees: The Manager distributed a memo concerning
committees and boards and members whose terms are up and recommended sending lettersto
those members so vacancies can be reviewed. There was general agreement on this.

Selectperson Carey asked if atown employee who had to leave hisregular job to respond to a
fire alarm would lose wages. The Manager said employees have not been docked in the past but
have been paid for the time scheduled for their regular job. Chairperson Driscoll asked about a
town employee who leaves their regular job to serve on acommittee. The Manager said that
employee would be paid what is paid to a committee member for that time, but it is his
understanding that employees who are working don't attend meetings.

- Newdletter Review: Cote distributed draft copies of the format for the new St. George
Newsletter. She said she would like to add a section for events by non-profit organizations. The
Manager asked that the town’ s two scholarship funds be added to the scholarship section. Anita
Siegenthaler asked if it mattered whether the non-profit organization events were mixed with the
town events. Steve Miller asked if al non-profit organizations would be alowed, including state
and county. Larry Bailey asked if the requested senior citizens survey insert would be considered
to be approved by the town Bob Siegenthaler asked if a Pandora’s box might not be opened
with respect to inserts. Selectperson Cote and Anita Siegenthaler said thisall could be discussed
at a meeting scheduled for Wednesday night. The newsletter policy committee isto report.




EXECUTIVE SESSION: At 7:44 p.m., the Board went into Executive Session to review
concealed firearm permit applications. The Board came out of Executive Session a 7:47 p.m.
On a motion by Selectperson Carey (Lunt), it was voted 5-0 to approve the four (4) applications.
Reminder: Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, February 11, 2008, 6 p.m., Town Office.
The meeting was adjourned at 7:48 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, February 11, 2008

The meeting was called to order a 6 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Cote, Miller, Carey
and Lunt and Town Manager Falla present. Among those also present were Bob Dennison,
Steve Miller, Ann Miller, Anita Volpe, Peter Ditchett, Diane Hall, and approximately 25 other
persons, who arrived at various times during the meeting.

OPEN DISCUSSION: Selectperson Carey mentioned that in Lincolnville, the Selectmen
were approached with a 350-person petition regarding Route 52 which basically said “no
pavement, no payment.”

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. . Personnel added under Executive Session
- Minutes............ (1) The minutes of February 4, 2008, were amended as

follows: Chairperson Driscoll said the government evaluation
committee should be referred to as “ Committee to Appraise
Town Government.” Regarding reference to Jack Bates
letter concerning streetlight review, Chairman Driscoll had
said he wanted to contact the Department of Transportation.
The Town Manager said the bid of TD Bank North should
have been stated as 2.57%, not 2.5%. With regard to the

LD 1 Effect on 2008 Budget, Town Manager said he had
recommended the limit be “exceeded” for one year, not
“raised” and that Selectperson Cote had asked if the limit
could be “changed” year by year, not “raised.” On amotion
by Selectperson Carey (Cote) it was voted 5-0 to approve the
minutes of February 4, 2008, as amended.

(2) On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Miller) it was voted
5-0 to approve the minutes of the streetlight meeting of
January 3l, 2008, as written.

- Communications. . . .. Inquiry received from Harley Oakes regarding waterfront
property. Steve Miller said the property had possibilities.
The Town Manager said he would gather information on it.
The matter was tabled for review.

-Warrant . ........... Reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER'’S REPORT:

- 2008 Town Meeting Warrant Update: The Town Manager reported that two ordinances will
be addressed at the Plan Board meeting and one at the Harbor Committee public meeting this
week, but they may not be ready for the Town Meeting. He asked if the Select Board wished to
hold a special meeting on this or would give him authorization to pull them from the Town
Meeting Warrant if necessary. On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Miller), it was voted 5-0to
give the Manager authorization to pull the ordinances if necessary.




- 2008 Action Plan/Bid Process/Appointments: The Town Manager reported that letters have
gone to Board members whose terms are expiring. He read the schedule for the Action Plan
Committee.

- Committees. - Planning Board meeting and hearing on Tuesday, 2/12 at 7 p.m.

- St. George Days Committee meets on Wednesday, 2/13 a 6 p.m.

- Harbor Committee public hearing on Thursday, 2/14, a 7 p.m.

- Recreation Committee meeting scheduled for 2/10 postponed to Sunday,
2/17, & 6 p.m.

OLD BUSINESS:

- Hupper Land Use Violation/Status: Nothing new to report.

- Committee to Appraise Town Government: Selectperson Driscoll reported that Wickham
Skinner isworking to flesh out the committee. Skinner has said he would like to have 7
members, with alternates. Driscoll said Skinner asked him if the Select Board would like to be
involved in the selection of members, but it was decided by the Select Board to stay out of it.
Wickham will be told to bring names to the Board.

- Creation of Scholarship Award Committees: The Town Manager said the criteriafor the
Wilson Scholarship Committee required the presence on the committee of a school administrator
and an educator but he has had trouble deciding who fits the description of an administrator. The
Town Manager isto get input from the person who drafted the criteria

- Streetlight Meeting Review: Chairperson Driscoll said they are waiting for answersto
guestions in Jack Bates' letter. The Town Manager said he spoke with a representative of
Central Maine Power about private lights on utility poles. He wastold CMP has easements
where the poles are located whether the lights are public or private. An estimate is forth-coming
on shielding lights downward. The matter wastabled until more information is received.
Selectperson Carey read a memo with recommendations for removal of streetlights, which
included lights on Factory Road and Watts Avenue.

- Report from Communications Committee: Selectperson Cote distributed Town of St.
George Communications Committee Charge and Members. She said it should be posted on the
town website so that anyone who wanted to make submissions could review it. Onamotion by
Selectperson Cote (Miller) it was voted 5-0 to approve the Charge and Members.

(At 6:40 p.m., a 20 minute break was taken in the meeting to alow for the arrival of persons who
were under the impression that the meeting was to start at 7:00 p.m., as was stated in the local

newspaper.)

NEW BUSINESS:

- Town Manager’s Contract: Chairperson Driscoll gave a PowerPoint presentation on the
process of arriving at the Town Manager’s contract. He also distributed performance evaluation
forms. It was questioned as to why the part of the Town Manager’ s benefits package paid back
as wages should not be included in the salary figure. AnitaVolpe asked whether the cancellation
clause in the contract was a new clause and questioned the rationale behind it. Chairperson
Driscoll said it was a new clause and it was there because it was felt both the town and the Town
Manager should have the right to change their minds. Peter Ditchett questioned the need for an
assistant town manager. Chairperson Driscoll said a comparable analysis of town governments
is being done but that we were here to discuss the Town Manager’ s contract only. Driscoll said




the assistant town manager question could be brought up a the Town Meeting. Steve Miller said
you cannot determine from market comparison the structure of other town’s governments.
Selectperson Lunt said there are only 20 towns with assistant town managers in the entire state
and St. George has the smallest population of those towns. Selectperson Driscoll said the
committee is being formed to discuss the management structure of the town and it will address
these concerns. Bob Dennison said he had pushed for an assistant town manager when he was
on the Select Board because he found out when the Town Manager was sick, he (Dennison) asa
selectperson was not capable of taking over the Town Manager’ s duties. Anita Volpe said she
had not been present for previous discussions on the committee and asked for an explanation of
the committee. Chairperson Driscoll read the Committee Charge aloud. Steve Miller said it has
been 20 years since the last review of the town government. Ann Miller asked how market
comparisons could be used without knowing the responsibilities of officials in other towns.
Chairperson Driscoll said responsibilities vary from town to town and the St. George Town
Manager could have duties that officials in other towns don’'t. He said the comparison was not
the sole basis used; other factors were considered. He said he feels the Town Manager has done
an excellent job and aroll back would not be fair. Anne Miller asked for clarification on the
severance package. It was asked when the committee would start work. Chairperson Driscoll
said Wickham Skinner is away for three weeks and will get started when he returns. He said it
will take a year for the committee to compl ete its work.

On amotion by Selectperson Cote (Carey) it was voted 4-1 to approve the Town Manager’s
contract as written. The motion was opposed by Selectperson Lunt, who said he would not sign
the contract. The contract was then signed by the other Selectpersons and the Town Manager.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Onamotion by Selectperson Cote (Carey) it was voted 5-0 at
7:52 p.m. to go into executive session to discuss personnel.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:10 p.m.
Reminder: Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, February 25, 2008, 6 p.m., Town Office.
Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, February 25, 2008

The meeting was called to order a 6 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Miller, Carey and
Lunt and Town Manager Falla present. Selectperson Cote was absent. Also present were
Beverly Emerson, Peter Ditchett, Bob Dennison, Diane Hall, Jack Bates, Carl Danielson, Fred
Morrill, Code Enforcement Officer Chris Leavitt, and Deputy Code Enforcement Officer Tim
Polky.

OPEN DISCUSSION: None.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. None.
- Minutes. ........... On a motion by Selectperson Carey (Miller) it was voted 4-0
to approve the minutes of February 11, 2008, as written.
- Communications. . . ... 2006 Audit Report was received last week. Town Manager
said it will be printed in the Town Report.
-Warrant............ Two weeks of warrants were reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:

- Harrington Cove Property Information: The Town Manager distributed a memo on this
property to the Board. Selectperson Miller said the property, which consists of only 0.263 acres,
has no launching ramp and has only about two hours of water access each day. By general
agreement, the Board decided there was no interest in this property.

- Town Report Status: The Town Manager reported that the proofs came in on Wednesday of
last week, were reviewed and sent back to the printer. Copies are expected to be available on
Friday, February 29, in the Town Office.

- Committees: - Planning Board meeting on Tuesday, 2/26 at 7 p.m.; public hearing on

Thursday, 2/28, a 7 p.m.

OLD BUSINESS:

- Committee to Appraise Town Government: Chairman Driscoll distributed alist of
appointees to the committee headed by Wickham Skinner. They are Larry Bailey, Jack Bates,
Mary Alice Bird, John Blydenburgh, Jim Graf and Marion Funkhauser. Two alternate sots are
still open. Selectperson Miller asked if any of the appointees are natives of the area. Chairman
Driscoll said the selection of appointees has been left up to Wickham Skinner and he does not
want to change the charge given to him. On a motion by Selectperson Carey (Miller), it was
voted 4-0 to approve the appointees.

- Crestion of Scholarship Award Committees: The Town Manager said he is still waiting for
information to come in.

- Streetlight Meeting Review: The Town Manager said he has received nothing yet from the
Department of Transportation and the response from the Maine Municipal Association’s legal
department has not been helpful. It was decided to defer the matter until the Board hears from
the DOT.

- 2008 Action Plan/Bid Process/Appointments: The Town Manager reported on the Action
Plan team meetings. Bids are due from prospective contractors by 4 p.m., Monday, March 3,
2008. The Town Manager reported receiving two bids today. He said there was alot of interest
in the mowing contract. Heiswaiting to hear from all committee appointees whose terms are




expiring. All but one of those who have responded have said they wished to be reappointed. As
to election clerks, who are appointed for two-year terms, the Town Manager said he has heard
from the Democrats and the Green Party, but not yet from the Republicans. The Town Manager
said there is a vacancy on the Shellfish Joint Board because one member, Mike Hutchinson,
recently passed away. The Board agreed to send $50.00 in lieu of flowers.

- Revaluation Plan: The Town Manager reported that he has received four responses from
companies with respect to the revaluation plan. Preparation of property data will wait until it is
determined whether the company eventually selected will include that preparation in its work.
The Town Manager said new digitalized maps will be ready for a presentation and review on
March 24. The Select Board should review the revaluation proposals so a decision could be
made on March 24.

NEW BUSINESS:
- Land Use Violations:

(1) Hollicker/Clark Iland Road — Tim Polky reported that the property owner requested
a building permit, was told the structure was too close to property line, but built the structure
anyway. The matter went to mediation where it was decided that the property owner would have
until June 1, 2008, to correct the violation or judgment would be entered which would require the
property owner to remove the structure and pay court costs.

(2) Hupper/Martinsville — Chris Leavitt reported that this matter involving removal of
vegetation is currently in talks between the DEP lawyer and the Hupper lawyer; and, if the Board
wishes, it can wait for the result of these talks. He said the DEP is looking for a monetary
settlement and not requiring replanting of vegetation but requiring that no further vegetation be
cut. The Town Manager asked if any policy should be set before the lawyers are heard from.
There was general agreement by the Board to wait and see if the DEP can settle it.

(3) Glaser/Drift Inn— Chris Leavitt reported that this involves a deck and stairway that
were built without a building permit. The Town Manager said aviolation letter was sent in
January, and he received a letter back from the property owner’s son requesting a consent
agreement with the Town to the effect that when his mother dies the structures would be
removed. ChrisLeavitt said the only permit that could be issued would be for the stairway. No
permit could be issued for the deck, so there is no basis for a consent agreement. His
recommendation is that the structure be removed. Chairperson Driscoll said he could not see
justifying its existence to the other citizens of the Town. Tim Polky said he would prefer
voluntary compliance, that is, correction of the violation and no fine, but that is not happening
here. Chairperson Driscoll said there should be no consent agreement and an enforcement letter
should be sent. On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Miller), it was voted 4-0 to enforce the
ordinance and deny the request for a consent agreement.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:53 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, March 3, 2008

The meeting was called to order a 6 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Carey, Cote and Lunt and
Town Manager Fallapresent. Selectperson Miller was absent. Also present were Beverly Emerson, Peter
Ditchett, Bob Dennison, Diane Hall, Jack Bates, Steve Jarrett, Reggie Montgomery and Steve Joseph.

RECEIPT AND OPENING OF TOWN WORK BIDS:
- Town work bids for (1) mowing town properties, (2) roadside mowing, (3) trash pickup services, (4)
summer road maintenance and (5) winter road maintenance were opened and read by the Town Manager.

OPEN DISCUSSION: None.

REGULAR SESSION:

- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. None.

- Minutes. ........... The minutes of February 25, 2008, were amended as follows:
(2) The list of appointees to the Committee to Appraise Town
Government should include Marion Funkhauser. (2) The
name of the deceased member of the Shellfish Joint Board is
Mike Hutchinson. The Board agreed to send a donation of
$50.00 in lieu of flowers. (3) It was stated asto the
revaluation plan that the Select Board should review the
revaluation proposals so a decision could be made on
March 24.
On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Lunt) it was voted 3-0 to
approve the minutes of February 25, 2008, as amended, with
Selectperson Cote abstaining because she was not present at
that meeting.

- Communications. . ..... (1) MSAD 50 budget document and meeting agenda was received. The
Town Manager said the documents are available in the Town Office
for review. He said it appears MSAD 50 is looking at this point for
an increase of 7.4%. Workshops will be held on Wednesday and
Thursday of thisweek at 6:30 p,m. at Georges Valley High School.

(2) Submerged Lands L ease for the Tenants Harbor public landing was
received. The Town Manager reported that the State will grant the
lease. On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Lunt), it was voted 4-0
to authorize the Town Manager to sign the lease.

(3) A liquor license application was received from Craignair 1nn,
including awritten waiver for a public hearing. On a motion by
Selectperson Cote (Carey), it was voted 4-0 to waive a public
hearing. On a motion by Selectperson Lunt (Carey), it was voted 4-
0 to approvethe liquor license..

-Warant............ Reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:
- Selectperson Carey complimented the Communication Committee on the Newsletter.
- Committees. - St. George Days Committee meets Wednesday, 3/5, a 6 p.m.
Communication Committee meets Wednesday, 3/5, a 7 p.m.
Conservation Committee meets Thursday, 3/6, a 7:30 am.
Recreation Committee meets Sunday, 3/9, a 6 p.m.



OLD BUSINESS:

- Creation of Scholarship Award Committees: With respect to the Wilson Scholarship Fund, the Town
Manager said letters have gone out to the clergy and so far one response from alocal clergyman, Jim
Robbins, has been received. The Town Manager reported that A. P. Wilson, Jr., clarified what “high
school administrator” meant, that it includes principal, vice principal or guidance counselor. The Town
Manager will send a letter confirming that, along with setting a deadline of May 1, 2008. The Town
Manager asked about the appointment of two town officials. Selectperson Carey said he and his wife,
Mary, were interested in serving on the committee.

- Streetlight Meeting Review: The Town Manager said he is still waiting for a response from the
Maine Department of Transportation.

- 2008 Action Plan Update: The Town Manager distributed a copy of the 2007 Action Plan to the
Board membersto review for changes for 2008. There was general agreement to table the matter for
discussion until the next meeting. Selectperson Cote suggested and there was general agreement on the
idea of aseminar with all the different groups attending to plan their goals and directions and that a
representative from the Maine Municipal Association participate in the discussion.

- Appointments Update: The Town Manager reported that he has heard back from almost everyone
and will make an effort to get the three or four outstanding responses so that he will have a full
complement to present at the next meeting.

NEW BUSINESS:

- Action on Town Work Bids: It was decided that no action would be taken on the bids tonight. They
were referred to the Town Manager, who will review them and prepare a spread sheet for the Board
members to review and discussin two weeks.

- Town Meeting Action Plan: The plan was reviewed by the Board members.

OTHER:

At the end of the meeting, Peter Ditchett questioned Board members asto how education costs are
arrived at, why the cost per sudent which he figured to be approximately $14,750.00 was so high, and
how it could be reduced. Chairperson Driscoll said thiswas outside the purview of the Select Board, that
the process starts with bringing concerns to the attention of the school board and the school district budget
committee. Mr. Ditchett said something has to be done because the cost is hurting the taxpayers.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: On amotion by Selectperson Lunt (Carey), it was voted 4-0 a 7:11 p.m. to go
into Executive Session to review a concealed firearm permit application. The Board came out of
Executive Session at 7:13 p.m. On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Cote), it was voted 4-0 to approve
the application.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:14 p.m.

Reminder: Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, March 10, 2008, 7 p.m., Town Office.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, March 10, 2008

The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Carey, Cote, Miller
and Lunt and Town Manager Falla present. Also present were Bob Dennison, Diane Hall and
Jack Bates.

OPEN DISCUSSION: None.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. None.

- Minutes. ........... On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Cote), it was voted 4-0
to approve the minutes of March 3, 2008, as written, with
Selectperson Miller abstaining because he was not present at
that meeting.

- Communications. . ..... (1) The Town Manager distributed to the Board members a
memorandum regarding on-site public hearings scheduled for
March 22, 2008.
(2) A liguor license public hearing for Wildcat Lobster is
scheduled for March 24, 2008.
(3) The Town Manager distributed to the Board members a
memorandum of those items to be addressed at the organiza-
tional meeting of the Select Board on March |7, 2008. Those
items include the election of a chairperson, the conduct of the
meeting, liaison officers, policy manual review, the Action
Plan for 2008, annual bid work, annual appointments, a
review of the Town Meeting, and authorization for equipment
purchases.
(4) The Town Manager distributed to the Board members a
memorandum dated March 6, 2008, regarding personnel
policy considerations which is to be reviewed and discussed at
the next Board meeting.
(5) The February 2008 CEO report was received and distri-
buted to the Board members by the Town Manager.
(6) The 2008-2009 septic disposal renewal contract was
received from Interstate Septic. The Town Manager said the
renewal contract was basically the same as last year’s
contract. On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Miller), it was
voted 5-0 to authorized the Town Manager to sign the
renewal contract.

-Warant............ Reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:

- Town Work Bids Update: The Town Manager said there was nothing new to report.

- Road Posted Update: The Town Manager reported that all town roads have been posted
until April 30, 2008, and that Route 73 is to be posted by the State.




- LD1 Update: The Town Manager said he feels the process should be explained at the
beginning of the Town Meeting so that when it comes time to vote on Article 26 of the Town
Meeting Warrant the people will understand what the vote is about, and he plansto do that. The
Town Manager said that right now, if approved as recommended, the 2008 budget will be about
$38,000.00 over the ceiling, and, therefore, it should be recommended that the limit be exceeded
for one year.

- Committees. - The Coastal Waters Management Board meets Thursday, 3/13, at 6 p.m.

The Shellfish Joint Board meets in Warren on Thursday, 3/13.

St. George Days Committee was meeting this evening.

The Recreation Committee met Sunday, 3/9.

Communication Committee met Sunday, 3/9, and meets again
Wednesday, 3/26.

OLD BUSINESS:

- Creation of Scholarship Award Committees: With respect to the Wilson Scholarship Fund,
the Town Manager reported that two local clergy have expressed interest in being on the
committee, that Mary June Smith, a French teacher at GVHS, has agreed to serve on the
committee, and that he is waiting to hear from the high school principal’ s office regarding avice
principa or guidance counselor. Asto the Grant Scholarship Fund, the Town Manager said he is
waiting for sample applications from the GVHS guidance counselor to develop an application for
this scholarship.

- Streetlight Meeting Review: The Town Manager distributed to the Board members a
memorandum dated March 4, 2008, concerning a telephone conversation he had with a
representative of Central Maine Power regarding CMP upgrade of town streetlights to new cut-
off lights. He reported that as changes have been made to town streetlights CMP has been
upgrading the old-style lights to new cut-off (downward shielding) lights and that if the Town
wanted all remaining lights changed to cut-offs CMP would not charge for the changeover but
would require the Town to sign a 15-year agreement with CMP for maintenance of the lights.
Under that agreement, the monthly cost per light would increase slightly and the cost of removal
of lights would increase significantly. Selectperson Cote asked if the Town had to enter into an
agreement. The Town Manger said it did not. Chairperson Driscoll asked what sort of
agreement with CMP the Town had now. The Town Manager said there was no agreement at
thistime. Chairperson Driscoll asked if the lights go out now is CMP responsible for the repair.
The Town Manager said it was. The Town Manager reported that he has not yet heard from the
Department of Transportation.

- 2008 Action Plan Update: The Board members reviewed Select Board issues. With respect
to law enforcement, Chairperson Driscoll asked if this should not be reviewed periodically. He
recommended trying to set up some sort of reporting arrangement. Bob Dennison said the
people of St. George would like to know what kind of calls are coming from this town compared
to other towns. With respect to town committees, Chairperson Driscoll and Selectperson Cote
said they feel there should be a 2008 planning meeting with the Board and town committeesto
establish a better working relationship with the other committees. The Town Manager said he
will incorporate that suggestion into the 2008 Action Plan.

- Appointments Update: The Town Manager said he is still waiting for a couple of responses.




- Land Use Violations Update: The Town Manager reported that an enforcement letter has
been sent to Glaser, that the Hollicker issue is supposed to be settled by aland swap, and that
there is nothing new on the Hupper matter.

NEW BUSINESS:

- Town Office/Temporary Change in Hours of Operation: The Town Manager said he would
like to close the Town Office at 4 p.m. on Wednesdays from March 26, 2008, to May 7, 2008, to
allow the office staff to attend a computer training class. On amotion by Selectperson Miller
(Carey), it was voted 5-0 to allow the Town Manager to close the Town Office as requested.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: None.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:37 p.m.

Reminder: Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, March 17, 2008, 6 p.m., Town Office.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, March 17, 2008

The meeting was called to order at 6 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Carey, Miller and Lunt and
Town Manager Fallapresent. Selectperson Cote was absent. Also present were Beverly Emerson,
Reggie Montgomery, Peter Ditchett, Stephen Adams, Steve Jarrett, Jack Bates, and Tim Polky.

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING:

- Election of Chairperson . . . By secret ballot, Selectperson Driscoll was reelected Chairman.

- Conduct of Meetings. ... The Chairman said that, hearing no objections, he would conduct the
Select Board's meetings informally, relying on Robert Rules of Order when
needed. The Chairman also that he would exercise his option to vote on
motions and that the Town Manager will continue to be the designee to
speak to the press. Selectperson Carey said he felt that members of the
public should stand up and give their names when speaking, and there was
general agreement on this. Selectperson Lunt asked if the Board would
consider moving the meeting start time back to 7 p.m. and made a motion,

seconded by Chairperson Driscoll to that effect. The motion failed on avote
of 2-2, with Selectpersons Carey and Miller opposed. It was decided to
reconsider this when a full board is present in two weeks, with the
possibility of trying the new time for a month or two and moving it back to
6 p.m. if it didn’t work out.

- Appointment of Board Secretary . . On amotion by Selectperson Lunt (Carey), it was voted 4-0 to
appoint Diane Speranza secretary to the Select Board.

OPEN DISCUSSION: None.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. Annual bids were added under Old Business.

- Minutes. ........... On a motion by Selectperson Carey (Lunt), it was voted 4-0 to approve the
minutes of March 10, 2008, as written.

- Communications. . ..... (1) The Town Manager asked if the members of the Board wished to have
copies of the ordinance amendments, and the answer was in the affirmative.

(2) MSAD #50 meeting agendas were received.
-Warrant . ........... Reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:
- Committees. - The Coastal Waters Management Board met last Thursday.
The Shellfish Joint Board met last Thursday.
The Committee to Appraise Town Government meets Wednesday at
4 p.m.

OLD BUSINESS:

- Creation of Scholarship Award Committees: With respect to the Wilson Scholarship Fund, the Town
Manager reported that three local members of the clergy have expressed interest in being on the
committee and a rotation schedule of the three was suggested. The Town Manager said he is still waiting
to hear from the administration of GVHS, and Chairperson Driscoll suggested the administration be
prodded periodically. Asto the Grant Scholarship Fund, the Town Manager said he has received sample
applications from the GV HS guidance office which are generic in nature. He said he would prepare a
sample application for the first year with revisions as needed.




- Streetlight Meeting Review: The Town Manager said he had a reply by voice mail from Dave Allen
of the Maine Department of Transportation. The message was that Mr. Allen had looked last week at the
streetlight at the intersection of Route 131 and Walston Road in Smalleytown, could see no reason for that
light to be there, and felt that it may be doing more harm whereit is. The Town Manager said the
property owners in the vicinity of the street-lights suggested for removal will be notified so that they will
have an opportunity to voice their opinion.

- 2008 Action Plan Update: The Town Manager said he will have a draft to the Board members this
week for review. A voteon the plan will be postponed until afull Board is present.

- Appointments Update: The Town Manager presented to the Board members the following schedule
of board and committee appointments:

BOARD/COMMITTEE TERM APPOINTEE
Planning Board 3years | LoaLee Blake
Planning Board 3years | William Hickey
Planning Board Alternate 1year Marvon Hupper
Planning Board Alternate 1year Mary K. Hewlett
Board of Appeals 3years | Robert D. Faustini
Board of Appeals 3years | William S. Reinhardt
Board of Appeals Alternate 1year David Banda
Budget Committee 3years | Ann Matlack
Budget Committee 3years | Carl Danielson
Coastal Waters Management Board 3years | Joshua Miller
Coastal Waters Management Board Alternate | 1 year Dan Falla
Comprehensive Plan Committee 3years | Amy Morey
Comprehensive Plan Committee 3years | Joshua McPhail
Comprehensive Plan Committee Alternate 1year Carl Schwab
Solid Waste and Recycling 3years | Deborah Wheelock
Solid Waste and Recycling 3years | Robert Conrad
Solid Waste and Recycling Alternate 1year Bruce Elfast
Solid Waste and Recycling Alternate 1 year Beverly Emerson
Clam Committee 3years | Sherman Hoyt
Conservation Commission 3years | Gayle Elfast
Conservation Commission Alternate 1year Antonia Small
Conservation Commission Alternate 1year Irving Bracy

On ablanket motion by Selectperson Carey (Lunt), it was voted 4-0 to make the appointments as

presented.

- Land Use Violations Update: The Town Manager said there was nothing new to report.

- Annual Bids: The Town Manager distributed a spread sheet containing the bids for town contract
work, aswell as adetailed bid statement received from Reggie Montgomery, and reviewed the bids with
the Board members. It wasfelt that Steve Jarrett’ s bids for lawn mowing and trash pickup services were
the most acceptable. Mr. Jarrett was asked if his contract bid was for one year or three years. Mr. Jarrett
replied that it could be for either, whichever is acceptable to the Board, and if it were for three years there
could be atermination provision. Selectperson Lunt made a motion to accept a 3-year contract with Mr.
Jarrett with an annual review. Chairperson Driscoll asked if granting contracts should not be put off until
some input is received from the Committee to Appraise Town Government. Selectperson Lunt then
withdrew his motion. The Town Manager said he did not think the committee would be ready with input
in time for the summer contracts. On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Miller), it was voted 4-0 to
approve a 3-year contract with Mr. Jarrett for lawn mowing, roadside mowing and trash pick-up services
with a 10% escalation clause for the third year and a 60-day termination clause. As for the summer and
winter roads maintenance contracts, the Town Manager said he spoke with the town manager of Warren
and checked with other towns with the result that he found it might be possible for the Town to save
$50,000/$100,000 over what it is spending now by doing the work itself. Selectperson Lunt asked if a
building would be required for equipment. He also asked that a summary be prepared by the Town
Manager and Tim Polky, which should include salaries and capital items. The Town Manager said a
summary would be prepared, and there was general agreement to consider this before proceeding with the
remaining contract work bids. Chairperson Driscoll asked if anyone wished to comment. Stephen Adams
of Harlan Black Congtruction said he has many years of experience and knowledge of the town roads and

2



would like his bid to be considered. Reggie Montgomery said that his employees are familiar with the
town roads, that his bid is contingent on both summer and winter maintenance and a 5-year contract on
both. Selectperson Carey asked the Town Manager if the Town had experience with asking for
performance bonds from outside contractors. The Town Manager said not from outside contractors, only
on specific projects.

NEW BUSINESS:
- Liaison Officers. The Town Manager presented the following list of last year’s assignments:

SELECT

DEPARTMENT PERSON
Assessing Driscoll
Community & Social Services Lunt
Finance Department Driscoll
General Assistance Miller
Harbor Department Carey
Parks & Recreation Department Lunt
Personnel Cote
Planning Dept.-Planning Board Driscoll
Planning Dept.-Board of Appeals Carey
Planning Dept.-Comp Plan Committee Carey
Planning Dept.-Conservation Committee | Cote
Public Safety-Fire Dept. & ACO Miller
Public Works-Property Maintenance Carey
Public Works-Roads Miller
Public Works-Solid Waste Lunt
Town Office Administration Cote

The Town Manager asked the Board membersiif they wished to keep the assignments asis and everyone
agreed. On amotion by Selectperson Lunt (Miller), it was voted 4-0 to stay with the status quo and
accept the assignments as presented.

- Policy Manual Review: Chairperson Driscoll said that a full Board must be present before action can
be taken on this. Selectperson Carey asked if the review could be done in sections, and there was genera
agreement to do that starting at the next meeting. The Town Manager said the policy manual had to be
completed by April 30, and it was determined that there would be at least three meetings between now
and April 30 when a full Board would be present.

- Review of Town Meeting: The Town Manager distributed copies of the Minutes of the Town
Meeting. Chairperson Driscoll recommended appointing a strong parliamentarian to conduct next year’s
Town Meeting, but the Town Manager said the Charter sates that the Maine Moderator’ s Manual must be
followed. Selectperson Lunt, with the assent of the other Board members present, asked the Town
Manager to expressto Cherie Y attaw the Board’ s appreciation for ajob well done on the Minutes of the
Town Meeting.

- Authorization for Equipment Purchases: The Town Manager said he needed the Board’ s authority to
purchase items for the fire department, so asto allow for purchases as necessary and at good prices. Ona
motion by Selectperson Lunt (Carey), it was voted 4-0 to give the Town Manager authority to purchase
items for the fire department in accordance with the budget approved at the Town Mesting.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: None.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:08 p.m.

Reminder: Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, March 24, 2008, 6 p.m., Town Office.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary
3



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, March 24, 2008

The session was called to order a 6 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Cote, Miller and Lunt and
Town Manager Fallapresent. Selectperson Carey was absent. Also present were Beverly Emerson,
Reggie Montgomery, Peter Ditchett, Stephen Adams, Steve Jarrett, Jack Bates, Carl Danielson, Diane
Hall, Stephanie Simmons, Travis Simmons, Randy Dennison, Jim Graf and Tim Polky.

PUBLIC HEARING: At 6:01 p.m., a public hearing commenced on the liquor license application of
Wildcat Lobster Company. Jim Graf said he was appearing on behalf of the Planning Board at the
request of the Planning Board chairman, William Hickey. He distributed to the members of the
Select Board a statement giving the Planning Board’s views on the application. He said the Planning
Board had previously granted Wildcat Lobster limited approval to run asmall take-out business as an
accessory use subordinate to its commercial lobstering business. To permit Wildcat Lobster to serve
alcoholic beverages would transform the take-out business into a full-scale restaurant business which
is not permitted in the Shoreland Zone. The Planning Board was aso concerned about parking
problems and traffic dangers that might be created on Route 131. For these reasons, the Planning
Board requested the Select Board to deny the application. Mr. Graf was questioned about existing
restaurants in the Shoreland Zone, and he replied that these existed before the ordinance and are
grand-fathered in. Stephanie Simmons, one of the owners of Wildcat Lobster, cited the Dip Net in
Port Clyde as a restaurant with no parking. She said Wildcat’ s take-out business does not make as
much money as Wildcat’ s lobstering business. She said Wildcat was a small business and it needs to
make money so it can work, and that was the reason for the application. Selectperson Miller
suggested the option of customers bringing their own alcoholic beverages to consume on the
premises. Mrs. Simmons asked if that was an option. Chairman Driscoll said he couldn’t answer for
the Planning Board. Peter Ditchett raised the issue of bathrooms, which would be a necessity if beer
and other alcoholic beverages were consumed. Chairman Driscoll advised Mr. and Mrs. Simmons to
go back to the Planning Board regarding alternatives.

The public hearing ended at 6:15 p.m., and the regular meeting of the Select Board commenced.

At thistime, the Select Board decided to take avote on Wildcat Lobster’ s liquor license
application out of order (it was scheduled under New Business on the agenda). There was general
agreement among the Board members that they should support the Planning Board on this. On a
motion by Selectperson Cote (Miller), it was voted 4-0 to deny Wildcat Lobster Company’ s liquor
license application.

OPEN DISCUSSION:

- Randy Dennison said he wanted to bring to the Board' s attention the conditions of Simons
Road, which is so bad that fire trucks cannot get in there and a tragedy could result. The Town
Manager said it would be a problem to do anything in the springtime because of the mud, that there
are plans to pave it but not this year, and that it could be put further up on the priority list. Tim Polky
said they might be able to get some crushed rock in there for now. Chairperson Driscoll said that
after April 30, when the roads are not posted, they will be checking and reporting on the roads.

- Sandra Hall was recommended as an alternate to the Committee to Appraise Town Government.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. None.
- Minutes............ The minutes of March 17, 2008, were amended under

Annual Bidsto state that the contracts with Steve Jarrett



approved at that meeting included roadside mowing, as well
as lawn mowing and trash pick-up services. On amotion by
Selectperson Miller (Lunt), it was voted 3-0 to approve the
minutes of March 17, 2008, as amended, with Selectperson
Cote abstaining because she was not present at that meeting.

- Communications. . . . ... (1) The Town Manager reported that he received service
agreements from CPRC for acceptance, tipping fees and
transportation of glass and asphalt shingles. Each contract is
an annual contract extendable to three years. The Town
Manager said he needed authorization from the Board to
enter into these contracts. Chairperson Driscoll asked if
there were any other providers. Tim Polky said there are no
others accepting these items at thistime. Reggie
Montgomery asked if the Town could use its own containers
to save money. Mr. Polky said the Town did not have them
but it was something to look into. On amotion by Lunt
(Miller), it was voted 4-0 to approve the contracts with
CPRC with an annual review.
(2) The Town Manager said MSAD #50 meeting agendas
were received, with two budget workshops scheduled this
week.
(3) The Town Manager said he received a Budget Memo
from MSAD #50 which summarized changes and has
St. George scheduled for a4.24% increase, but he said that
figure could change.
(4) The April 2008 town calendar was received and
reviewed.

-Warrant . ........... Reviewed and signed. Appointment forms were signed by
the Board members.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:
- Committees: - The Planning Board meetson 3/25 at 7 p.m..

- The Communication Committee meets on 3/26.

- The Committee to Appraise Town Government met on 3/19 and meets
again on 4/2. The Committee will be meeting on the 2™ and 4"
Wednesdays of each month at 4 p.m. at the Town Office.

- Selectperson Cote said “free dump day” should be discussed at the
next Solid Waste Committee meeting, which is scheduled for 4/16.

OLD BUSINESS:

- Creation of Scholarship Award Committees. The Town Manager reported that he has been told
that a person in the Guidance Office at the high school will represent the high school administration
on the Wilson Scholarship Fund committee. He said he should have the final award committee list
for the next Board meeting.

- Streetlight Meeting Review: The Town Manager reported that he spoke with Dave Allen of the
Maine Department of Transportation. Mr. Allen said that based on the accident record at the
Smalleytown intersection, he did not see the need to relocate the light to that intersection, just remove
it. Asto the removal of streetlights, the Town Manager asked if a date should be scheduled so
affected property owners could be notified for the purpose of giving them a chance to be heard on

2



this. Chairperson Driscoll suggested and there was general agreement to hold such a streetlight
hearing review on May 12, 2008, at 7 p.m., following the regular meeting of the Select Board.
- 2008 Action Plan Update: This matter wastabled until afull Board is present.

- Appointments Update:

On a motion by Selectperson Cote (Miller), it was voted 4-0 to appoint the following personsto a

two-year term beginning May 1, 2008:
Election Clerk
Election Clerk
Election Clerk
Election Clerk
Election Clerk
Election Clerk
Election Clerk
Election Clerk

Ann Marie Leight (R)
Deborah Whed ock (R)
Vivian Leppanen (D)
Marjorie Cook (D)
Shirley French (D)
Margaret Phillips (D)
Susan Smith-Riedd (G)
Sandy Y akovenko (G)

On amotion by Selectperson Miller (Cote), it was voted 4-0 to appoint the following persons to

aone-year term beginning May 1, 2008:
Fire Chief
Fire Chief - Deputy
Fire Chief - Assistant
Fire Chief - Assistant
General Assistance Administrator
Health Officer
Purchasing Agent
Records Officer
Road Commissioner
Tax Collector
Town Clerk
Treasurer
Knox Dispatch Advisory Committee - Fire
Knox Dispatch Advisory Committee- EMS
Knox Dispatch Advisory Committee - EMA
GRRSMO Joint Board representative

- Timothy C. Polky

- Larry Smith, J.

- Michadl N. Smith, Sr.
- Dennis Rackliff

- John M Falla

- John M Falla

- John M Falla

- John M Falla

- John M Falla

- Margaret JC Black

- John M Falla

- John M Falla
Timothy C Polky
Christopher Ferguson
Timothy C Polky

- Keith R. Miller

On amotion by Selectperson Lunt (Miller), it was voted 4-0 to confirm the following one-year

appointments made by the Town Manager:
Emergency Mgmt Director
Emergency Mgmt Director - Deputy
Clerk — Deputy
Clerk — Assistant
Clerk — Assistant
Code Enforcement Officer
Code Enforcement Officer - Deputy
General Assistance Administrator — Deputy
Loca Plumbing Inspector
Loca Plumbing Inspector - aternate
Harbormaster
Harbormaster - Deputy
Harbormaster - Deputy
Recreation Director
Tax Collector — Deputy
Tax Collector — Deputy
Treasurer — Deputy
Treasurer — Deputy
Treasurer — Deputy

- Timothy C. Polky

- Waino Kangas

- Margaret J. C. Black
- Patricia St Clair

- Beth A. Smith

- Christopher Leavitt
- Timothy C. Polky

- Timothy C. Polky

- Christopher Leavitt
- Timothy C. Polky

- David Schmanska

- Bradley Rackliff

- Gerald Cushman

- Wayne Judkins

- Patricia St. Clair

- Beth A. Smith

- Margaret J. C. Black
- Patricia St. Clair

- Beth A. Smith

- Land Use Violations Update: The Town Manager said there was nothing new to report.

3



- Policy Manual Review: The Town Manager proposed to separate the Policy Manual into three
parts on meeting dates when a full Board would be present. It was decided to do the review as
follows. Pages 1-12 on March 31, pages 13-23 on April 7, and pages 24-36 on April 28, with
approval of the entire manual on April 28 if the review warrants it.

- Annual Bid Work: Asdiscussed at the last meeting, the Town Manager prepared a public works
proposal and distributed to and reviewed with the Board members a spreadsheet with supporting
information, which showed an approximate savings of $50,000.00. Copies of the proposal were also
distributed to members of the public attending the meeting. Selectperson Cote noted that
Selectperson Lunt had inquired at the last meeting whether a building for equipment would be
needed. Tim Polky said he believed it would. Chairperson Driscoll said he felt that the proposal
should be reviewed and considered carefully and that the Board should wait for input from the
Committee to Appraise Town Government before any long-term commitments are made. The Town
Manager asked if the Board wanted to take any action on a summer roads contract. It was agreed that
the full Board should be present for this, which would be the next meeting.

- Revaluation Action Plan: The Town Manager reported that there were seven proposals received
and notices were sent to all with respect to the change of the delivery date from 2009 to 2010. The
postponement resulted in percentage increases in some of the proposals. For instance, the lowest
proposal (Parker), originally at $150,000.00, increased by 10% to $165,000.00. The Town Manager
said he learned at the technology conference he attended last week that the State is working with the
Maine Geo Library on a strategic plan for a sanitized data base for land records, which should be in
place in three to five years. With respect to that, Diane Hall suggested that with the money saved by
going with the lowest proposal and if the Town has the capability to do it itself, it should not wait for
the State. Selectperson Cote and Chairperson Driscoll said discussion and action on this should take
place next week when a full Board is present.

NEW BUSINESS:

- Liquor License Application/Wildcat Lobster Company: Action on this application was taken out
of order and voted on at the beginning of the meeting.
EXECUTIVE SESSION: None.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:15 p.m.

Reminder: Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, March 31, 2008, 6 p.m., Town Office.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



